
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting June 7, 2017 
Published to TVMWD website: June 4, 2017  Page 1 of 3 

 

As a matter of proper business decorum, the Board of Directors respectfully request that all cell 
phones be turned off or placed on vibrate. To prevent any potential distraction of the proceeding, we 
request that side conversations be taken outside the meeting room. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Wednesday, June 7, 2017 at 8:00 AM 
  

The mission of Three Valleys Municipal Water District is to supplement and enhance local water 
supplies to meet our region’s needs in a reliable and cost-effective manner. 

Item 1 – Call to Order  Kuhn 

Item 2 – Pledge of Allegiance  Kuhn 

Item 3 – Roll Call 

  Bob Kuhn, Division IV – President  

  David De Jesus, Division II – Vice President  

  Brian Bowcock, Division III – Secretary  

  Joe Ruzicka, Division V – Treasurer  

  Dan Horan, Division VII – Director  

  Carlos Goytia, Division I – Director  

  John Mendoza, Division VI - Director 

 Executive 
 Assistant 

Item 4 – Additions to Agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) 

Additions to the agenda may be considered when two-thirds of the Board 
members are present determine a need for immediate action, and the need to act 
came to the attention of TVMWD after the agenda being posted; this exception 
requires a degree of urgency. If fewer than two-third of the Board Members are 
present, all must affirm the action to add an item to the agenda. The Board shall 
call for public comment prior to voting to add any item to the agenda after posting. 

 Kuhn 

Item 5 – Reorder Agenda  Kuhn 

Item 6 – Public Comment (Government Code Section 54954.3) 

Opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Board on items of 
public interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of TVMWD. The public 
may also address the Board on items being considered on this agenda. TVMWD 
requests that all public speakers complete a speaker’s card and provide it to the 
Executive Assistant. 

We request that remarks be limited to five minutes or less. 

 Kuhn 

  



Agenda – Regular Board Meeting June 7, 2017 
Published to TVMWD website: June 4, 2017  Page 2 of 3 

 

Item 7 – Board Presentations 

Item 7A – Legal Update: Annual Sunshine Ordinance Review 

General Counsel Steve Kennedy will provide a presentation to include updates to the Ralph M. Brown 
Act and other statutory and regulatory requirements the District must comply with. The Board will also 
complete their annual review of the TVMWD’s Sunshine Ordinance and make any recommendations. 

Item 8 – General Manager’s Report  Hansen 

Item 8.A – Administration staff will provide brief updates on existing matters under their purview and 
will be available to respond to any questions thereof. 

8.A.1 – Draft Resolution Setting Procedures and Charges for Public Review and Copy of 
District Records [enc] 

The Board will be provided a draft resolution developed due to the recent ruling by the California 
Supreme Court as it concerns public records. The Board will consider the resolution and provide 
direction to staff for future action. 

8.A.2 – Draft Resolution Declaring a Water Supply Watch [enc] 

The Board will be provided a draft resolution that authorizes the declaration of a Water Supply 
Watch. Once adopted this resolution will supersede the action taken by Resolution 14-04-729 
supporting a Water Supply Alert. The Board will consider the proposed resolution and provide 
direction to staff for future action. 

8.A.3 – Modified Board Meeting Schedule [enc] 

The Board will review and consider its summer schedule and provide direction to staff for future 
action. 

 
Item 8.B – Engineering-Operations staff will provide brief updates on existing matters under their 
purview and will be available to respond to any questions thereof. 

8.B.1 – Relocation of Recharge Well Easements [enc] 

The Board will review and consider the proposed relocation of recharge well easements and direct 
staff to return for future action. 

8.B.2 – Project Summary Update [enc] 

The Board will review a summary update of ongoing projects. 

Item 8.C – Finance-Personnel staff will provide brief updates on existing matters under their purview 
and will be available to respond to any questions thereof. 

8.C.1 – Audit of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting [enc] 

Staff will provide an overview of SAS 130, an auditing standard recently enacted that allows the 
external auditor to conduct an audit and provide an opinion on the internal controls over financial 
reporting.  

8.C.2 – Review of Salary Schedule Effective July 1, 2017 Pursuant to CalPERS Regulations 
[enc] 

The Board will review the salary schedule effective July 1, 2017 pursuant to CalPERS regulations 
on this matter and provide direction to staff for future action. 



Agenda – Regular Board Meeting June 7, 2017 
Published to TVMWD website: June 4, 2017  Page 3 of 3 

 

Item 9 – Closed Session 

A. Public Employee Performance/Evaluation (pursuant to Government Code 

54957) 

• General Manager 

 

Item 10 – Report Out Of Closed Session Kuhn 

Item 11 – Future Agenda Items  Kuhn 

Item 12 – Adjournment 

Board adjourned to June 21, 2017 Regular Board Meeting at 8:00 AM. 

American Disabilities Act Compliance Statement 

Government Code Section 54954.2(a) 

 

Any request for disability-related modifications or accommodations 
(including auxiliary aids or services) sought to participate in the 
above agendized public meeting should be directed to the 
TVMWD’s Executive Assistant at (909) 621-5568 at least 24 hours 
prior to meeting. 

Agenda items received after posting 
Government Code Section 54957.5 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public review at 
the TVMWD office located at, 1021 East Miramar Avenue, 
Claremont, CA, 91711. The materials will also be posted on the 
TVMWD website at www.threevalleys.com. 
 

Three Valleys MWD Board Meeting packets and agendas are 
available for review on its website at www.threevalleys.com.  The 
website is updated on Sunday preceding any regularly scheduled 
board meeting. 

http://www.threevalleys.com/
http://www.threevalleys.com/


Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Discussion: 

The Board will be asked to review and consider a draft resolution and related exhibits 

concerning the setting of procedures and charges for public review and copy of District 

records. A copy of the public records inspection and copy form is included as Exhibit A. 

The draft resolution provides clarification on the proper handling of public records 

requests and proposes a fee schedule, Exhibit B, for same.  

Finally, the resolution addresses issues relative to review of public documents that may 

exist on personal electronic devices and personal e-mail accounts, and includes a draft 

declaration, Exhibit C, that will be completed when a request is completed on these 

devices and/or accounts. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 
 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: 
Draft Resolution Setting Procedures and Charges for Public Review and 
Copy of District Records 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.A.1



Resolution No. 17-06-*** DRAFT 
Page 1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-06-*** DRAFT 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

 THE THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 SETTING PROCEDURES AND CHARGES FOR 

 PUBLIC REVIEW AND COPY OF DISTRICT RECORDS 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District (“District”) that the following rules and regulations related to public access for 
inspection and copying of District records be adopted pursuant to Government Code 
Section 6253(e): 
 

Section 1. General Rules.  The policy set forth below shall be used for guidance 
in distributing public documents and in responding to requests for information that the 
District may receive.  It is designed to compliant with existing law such that any provision of 
this policy in conflict with existing law shall have no force or effect. 
 

1.1. All District records and documents not deemed to be exempt under the 
California Public Records Act (“the Act”), California Government Code Section 6250 et 
seq., shall be open to the public for inspection and copying pursuant to the requirements of 
the Act and the procedures established herein. 
 

1.2. Any person who wishes to inspect or copy any document or record of 
the District shall submit or unequivocally convey such a request to the District which 
reasonably and particularly describes an existing and identifiable record.  The person 
seeking the record may, but need not, state his or her reason for making the request 
and/or the use to which the information will be put. 
 

1.3. When a member of the public requests to inspect a public record, or 
obtain a copy of a public record, the District, in order to assist the member of the public 
make a focused and effective request that reasonably describes an identifiable record or 
records, shall perform all of the following, to the extent reasonable under the 
circumstances: 
 

(a) Assist the member of the public to identify records and 
information that are responsive to the request or to the purpose of the 
request, if stated; 

 
(b) Describe the information technology and physical location in 

which the records exist; and 
 
(c) Provide suggestions for overcoming any practical basis for 

denying access to the records or information sought. 
 

1.4. If the District receives a request for approved minutes, publicly-posted 
agendas, adopted budgets, and/or other simple, routine, and otherwise readily-available 
documents in the District’s immediate possession, said records shall be released to the 
requesting party for inspection as soon as possible.  If copies thereof are requested, said 

Item 8.A.1

vhahn
Draft



Resolution No. 17-06-*** DRAFT 
Page 2 
 

records shall be released to the requesting party as soon as possible after payment of the 
fee adopted by the District pursuant to Section 1.8 hereof. 
 

1.5. All requests for records that are outside the scope of Section 1.4 
hereof shall be reduced to written form.  For convenience in describing the records sought, 
the District shall furnish the requesting party with the standard form attached hereto as 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.  However, use of that form shall not 
be the exclusive means by which a member of the public may identify said documents in 
writing.  If the requesting party refuses or is unable to submit a request in writing, the 
District shall prepare a written memorandum articulating the request as it is understood. 
 

1.6. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of a request to inspect or 
copy any document or record of the District identified in the writing prepared pursuant to 
Section 1.5 hereof, the District shall determine whether the request, in whole or in part, 
seeks copies of disclosable public records in the possession of the District, and shall 
immediately notify the person making the request of such determination and the reasons 
therefor. 
 

1.7. Under unusual circumstances as defined in the Act, the time limit 
prescribed in Section 1.6 hereof may be extended by written notice by the General 
Manager of the District, or his or her designee, to the person making the request setting 
forth the reasons for the extension and the date on which a determination is expected to be 
dispatched.  No such notice shall specify a date that would result in an extension for more 
than fourteen (14) calendar days. 
 

1.8. If the District determines that the records requested shall be made 
available for public inspection or copying, the District shall promptly make the records 
available to the requesting party.  If copies are requested, the District shall promptly 
provide copies of the records to the requesting party upon payment of a duly-adopted fee 
to cover the District’s direct cost of duplication as calculated in the Schedule of Fees 

attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

1.9. If the District determines that the records requested shall not be made 
available for public inspection or copying, the District shall justify withholding any record by 
demonstrating that the record in question is exempt under the Act, that the District is 
unable to identify the information requested in the writing prepared pursuant to Section 1.5 
hereof after making a reasonable effort to provide the assistance described in Section 1.3 
hereof and elicit additional clarifying information from the requester that would help identify 
the record or records, or that, based on the facts of the particular case, the public interest 
served by not making the record public clearly outweighs the public interest served by 
disclosure of the record.  Any notification of denial of any request for records shall set forth 
the names and titles of each person responsible for the denial. 
 

1.10. If the District determines that any part of an otherwise public record 
shall not be made available for public inspection or copying, any reasonably segregable 
portion of the record shall be provided to the person requesting such record after deletion 
of the portions which are exempt by law and upon (a) compliance with Section 1.8 hereof 
as to the portions released to the requesting party and (b) satisfaction of Section 1.9 hereof 
as to the portions deleted therefrom. 

 

Item 8.A.1



Resolution No. 17-06-*** DRAFT 
Page 3 
 

1.11. The District may comply with its obligation to allow for in person 
examination of records or to provide copies of records by posting any public record on its 
website and, in response to a request for records, directing the requesting party to the 
location on the website where the record is posted.  Any such record posted on the 
District’s website shall be posted in an open format in compliance with Government Code 
Section 6253.10. 

 
1.12 If any request for a District record relates to a record in an electronic 

format, the District will make the record available in any electronic format in which it holds 
that record or in the format requested if the requested format is one the District has used to 
make copies for its own use.  However, the District will not release any record in electronic 
format if that release would jeopardize or compromise the security or integrity of the 
original record or of any proprietary software in which the record is maintained. The 
requesting party must pay for the District’s direct cost of copying any record in an electronic 
format.  The District may recover its programming and computer service costs if the 
request requires data compilation, extraction or programming to produce the record or if 
the record is produced at other than a regularly scheduled interval.   

 
1.13. The District will retain in its records all written requests for inspection or 

copying of public records in accordance with the District's records retention guidelines. 
 

Section 2. Special Rules for Examination.  The District will provide an area at its 
offices for examination of its public records.  Examinations may take place only during 
regular District business hours, must take place on District premises, and will be subject to 
observation by District personnel.  These procedures are for the sole purpose of protecting 
original records against tampering or theft.  Any examination of original District records will 
be subject to the following rules: 
 

2.1. No document or record, or any part thereof, shall be removed from the 
file, notebook, folder, or other compilation in which it is contained. 

 
2.2. No document or record shall be written on, marked on, or erased, nor 

shall any writing or information therein otherwise be removed; nor shall any person destroy, 
mutilate, deface, alter or falsify any document or record. Violations of this rule will be 
prosecuted pursuant to Government Code §6201. 

 
2.3. The party examining records shall comply with all instructions of 

District personnel.  District personnel may terminate or restrict the examination as may be 
necessary to preserve District records. 

 
Section 3. Review of Personal Electronic Devices and Personal E-Mail 

Accounts. 
 

3.1. Upon receipt of a request under the Act that may involve responsive 
records that may have been transmitted by an employee or director through the 
employee’s or director’s personal electronic devices (including, but not limited to, a smart 
phone, tablet or laptop computer) or personal e-mail account, the District’s General 
Manager shall notify any employee or director who may reasonably be expected to have 
any such requested records on such a personal device or personal e-mail account of the 
need for that employee or director to search his or her personal device(s) and personal e-

Item 8.A.1



Resolution No. 17-06-*** DRAFT 
Page 4 
 

mail account(s) for any records (including, but not limited to, text messages, e-mails or 
other electronic records) that may be housed on any such device or in any such account.  
Any such search will be conducted promptly upon receipt of notice from the General 
Manager to ensure the District complies with the timeframes for responding to the request 
in accordance with this policy.  Any such search shall be conducted in good faith to be 
reasonably calculated to locate any responsive public records that may be housed on any 
such personal device or personal e-mail account, but need not be extraordinarily extensive 
or intrusive. 

 
3.2. Upon completion of the search of any such devices or accounts, the 

employee or director shall complete the declaration in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 

C that states the appropriate result from that search.  The District shall provide training for 
all employees and directors regarding how to conduct such searches and how to 
differentiate and segregate public records from private records.  The District shall conduct 
updated training at least every two years.  The District shall have personnel available to 
assist any employee or director who requests assistance in conducting such a search. 

 
3.3. The District shall incorporate into its separate electronic 

communications policy provisions designed to minimize the likelihood of an employee or 
director using his or her personal electronic device or personal e-mail account for District 
business. 
 

Section 4. Effective Date and Review.  This Resolution supersedes any 
previously-adopted motion, resolution, or ordinance inconsistent with the terms hereof and 
shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  This Resolution will be reviewed and 
revised as deemed appropriate by the District’s Board of Directors. 

 

ADOPTED and PASSED at a meeting of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s 
Board of Directors, on this 21st day of June 2017 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:               
NOES:       
ABSTAIN:       
ABSENT:       
 
 
 

       Bob G. Kuhn, President 
      
ATTEST: 
 
 

Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
      SEAL:  

 

Item 8.A.1



PUBLIC RECORDS INSPECTION and COPY 
Request Form 
 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
1021 East Miramar Avenue 
Claremont, CA 91711 
909-621-5568; Fax: 909-625-5470 
 
Name of Requestor (please print)       

Affiliation (optional) 

Address (optional) 

Phone Number (optional)     Fax Number (optional) 

Email Address (optional) 

 
I wish to request the following public records pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code §6250-
6276.48): 
 
Title/Document 
 
Description 
 
 
 
 
 
Date/Year of document(s) 
 
Please check all that apply 
 

Inspect only  Request copies  Mail copies Email copies  Pick up copies 
 
 
Please be advised that under California Government Code §6250 et seq., the District has ten (10) days after 
the date of your request to determine whether the record(s) you have requested is/are subject to disclosure 
under the public records act.  This period of time may be extended by the district for an additional fourteen 
(14) days.  You will be notified upon determination of your request. I understand that there is a charge for 
duplication of all materials that I may request and agree to pay for those copies before receiving the material. 
 

Check box to validate typed/printed name below as e-signature 
 
 
Signature       Date  
 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

DATE RECEIVED:  DATE NOTIFIED: 

RECORDS PRODUCED BY: 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

 

Item 8.A.1

vhahn
Draft



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

 

 
Records Request Schedule of Fees* 

 

 

Price for a copy of a page (8-1/2” x 11”) (Black/White or Color) $0.25 Per page 

Price for a copy of a page (11” x 14”) (Black/White or Color) $0.25 Per page 

Price for a copy of a page (11 x 17) (Black/White or Color) $0.30 Per page 

24 x 36 Maps black/ white or color (done by outside copier) Actual Cost 

Price for an affidavit to certify the copy(ies) $2.50 per page 

Price for an envelope $0.05 each 

Price for a large manila envelope $0.50 each 

Price for mailing (letter-size envelope) $0.46 each 

Price for mailing (large manila envelope) $5.43 each 

Price for overnight mail Actual  Cost 

Price for mailing a “certified” letter (in addition to postage due) $7.55 each 

Price for a copy with CD $1.50 each 

*Fees are subject to change upon current USPS Rates. 

 

No Charge for items emailed to requestor and   
No Sales Tax on Public Records Requests 

Item 8.A.1

vhahn
Draft



 

Form of Declaration 

 

 

 I,      , hereby declare as follows: 

 

1. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth in this declaration. 

 

2. I currently am serving as the         [state employee or 

director’s position] of Three Valleys Municipal Water District (“District”). 

 

3. On    , 20___, I received notice of the need to search my personal 

electronic device and personal e-mail account for documents that may be responsive to a Public 

Records Act request the District received from        [insert name 

of requesting party] (the “Request”). 

 

4. I have, with reasonable diligence, searched all of my personal electronic devices 

and personal e-mail accounts (that is, those accounts which are not housed on a District server), 

including, but not limited to, my       [describe the devices 

searched] and my e-mail address of ____________________________ [insert all personal e-mail 

accounts that were searched] and have provided all public records responsive to the Request to the 

responsible District employee. 

 

[OR] 

 

4.      I have, with reasonable diligence, searched all of my personal electronic devices 

and personal e-mail accounts (that is, those accounts which are not housed on a District server), 

including, but not limited to, my       [describe the devices 

searched] and my e-mail address of _________________________ [insert all personal e-mail 

accounts that were searched] and did not locate any public records on such devices or accounts 

that were responsive to the Request. 

 

[CONTINUE] 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing is true and correct. 

 

Dated:     , 20____         

        [insert name] 

Item 8.A.1

vhahn
Draft



 

 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Discussion: 

Three Valleys is seeking to support the initiatives adopted by the Metropolitan Water 
District during its May 9, 2017 Board Meeting as it concerns water supply reliability 
whereby they lifted their water supply alert conditions, and called for a water supply 
watch. 
 
Three Valleys previously adopted Resolution No. 14-04-729 in support of a water supply 
alert due to the severe multi-year year drought experienced in California. 
 
During water year 2017, the state of California has experienced one of the wettest of 
recent record, with snowpack in Northern California at approximately 160% of normal, 
and the Department Water Resources State Water Project allocation at 85%. 
 
On April 4, 2017 Governor Edmund G. Brown, Jr. declared the end of drought 
conditions in the state of California. 
 
However, in Southern California we are still encouraging a high level of efficient water 
use due to continuing historical low groundwater levels in the local basins. It will likely 
take years for the basins to fully recharge. 
 
Approval of this action will supersede Resolution No. 14-04-729, lifting the water supply 
alert, and declaring a water supply watch condition. TVMWD will remain cognizant and 
prepared for any changing climate conditions that require a more frequent and 
persistent evaluation of limited water supplies and will take appropriate and necessary 
action. 
 
This item will be returned to the Board for consideration of approval at the June 21, 
2017 meeting. 
  
  

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: Draft Resolution Declaring a Water Supply Watch 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.A.2



Strategic Plan Objectives:  

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

3.4 – Communicate TVMWD’s role in delivery of water 

3.5 – Ensure that all of the region’s local government policy makers understand 
TVMWD’s role in delivery of water 

Item 8.A.2



 

 

Resolution No. 17-06-*** 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-06-*** 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

DECLARING A WATER SUPPLY WATCH 
 

WHEREAS, the state of California is experiencing record wet conditions, with 
snowpack at approximately 160% of normal in Northern California, and water year 2017 is 
the wettest year on record over the past several years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Water Resources current State Water 

Project allocation is 85% of contract amounts; and 
 
WHEREAS, despite precipitation, the state of California has endured a severe 

multi-year drought that continues to impact storage levels of major supplies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Three Valleys Municipal Water District has relied on the guidelines 

provided through its Resolution No. 14-04-729 in support of a Water Supply Alert; and 
 
WHEREAS, Governor Edmund G. Brown, Jr. declared the drought over on April 4, 

2017, and signed Executive Order B-37-16 encouraging water use efficiency and 
conservation as a way of life in California; and 

 
WHEREAS, Three Valleys MWD relies on the actions of its 14 member agencies 

to enact and implement local water use efficiency measures; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Three Valleys 

Municipal Water District, declares that its service area is in a Water Supply Watch 
condition; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD encourages its member 

agencies to implement water use efficiency measures to preserve regional storage 
reserves; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD will work with its member 

agencies to identify mechanisms that will encourage and facilitate the adoption of rate 
structures to promote water use efficiency; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD will coordinate with its 

member agencies in the development of a unified regional message to communicate the 
need for continued water use efficiency to the public, businesses, stakeholder industries 
and public officials; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD will work with and assist 

its member agencies to help ensure a reliable near-term and long-term water supply, and 
to inform its retail water users of the Water Supply Watch conditions, and the need for 
sustained water use efficiency practices. 

 
  

Item 8.A.2

vhahn
Draft



Resolution No. 17-06-*** 
Page 2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that adoption of this resolution will supersede 
Resolution No. 14-04-729 in support of a Water Supply Alert. 
 

ADOPTED and PASSED at a meeting of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s 
Board of Directors, on this 21st day of June 2017 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:               
NOES:       
ABSTAIN:       
ABSENT:       
 
 
 

       Bob G. Kuhn, President 
      
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
      SEAL:  

Item 8.A.2



Board of Directors
Water Planning and Stewardship Committee 

5/9/2017 Board Meeting 

8-
Subject 

Adopt CEQA determination and adopt resolution to declare a “Condition 1 – Water Supply Watch”

Executive Summary

This letter recommends that the Board adopt a Water Supply Watch Resolution calling for local agencies to 
achieve continued water use efficiency through voluntary conservation measures.  In May 2016, Metropolitan’s 
Board approved moving from a “Condition 3 – Water Supply Allocation” to a “Condition 2 – Water Supply 
Alert,” the level it currently maintains.  This shift reflected the success of Metropolitan’s conservation and public 
outreach programs prior to and during the drought and the region’s sustained water demand reduction response.  
In addition, the hydrologic conditions started to improve that year, and Metropolitan began storing water in its  
dry-year storage programs for the first time since the drought began.   

Statewide hydrologic conditions continue to improve in the current water year and, in fact, the northern California 
water year precipitation record was broken in April 2017.  These improvements prompted the Governor to declare 
an end to the drought state of emergency in California on April 7, 2017.  Metropolitan also is forecasting to add 
over a million acre-feet to its dry-year storage reserves.  Although this represents the largest annual storage 
increase in Metropolitan’s history, it will not return Metropolitan’s reserves back to pre-drought levels. Staff is,
therefore, recommending that Metropolitan’s Board adopt a resolution declaring a “Condition 1 – Water Supply 
Watch.”  This level more appropriately reflects current conditions, the actions taken by the Governor and the 
projected dry-year storage reserves at the end of calendar year 2017.  Should the forecasted unprecedented 
increase in storage gains occur through the end of calendar year 2017, staff may recommend moving to a 
“Baseline – Water Use Efficiency” status in calendar year 2018.   

Details 

Background 

The Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan (WSDM Plan) provides a water management framework that 
accounts for the degree or “stage” of shortage.  These stages are defined by parameters such as shortage levels and 
expected State Water Project (SWP) and Colorado River Aqueduct supplies.  Each stage has associated actions 
that could be taken as part of the response to prevailing shortage conditions.  Consistent with the WSDM Plan, 
Metropolitan uses the following system of conditions to communicate the urgency of the region’s water supply 
situation:  

Baseline:
Water Use Efficiency

Ongoing implementation of conservation, recycling and 
outreach programs to achieve permanent increases in water use 
efficiency and build storage reserves.

Condition 1: 
Water Supply Watch

Local agency voluntary dry-year conservation measures and use 
of regional storage reserves.

Item 8.A.2



5/9/2017 Board Meeting 8- Page 2 

Condition 2: 
Water Supply Alert

Regional call for cities, counties, member agencies and retail 
water agencies to implement extraordinary conservation through 
drought ordinances and other measures to mitigate use of 
storage reserves.

Condition 3:
Water Supply Allocation Implement Metropolitan Water Supply Allocation Plan.

Metropolitan’s dry-year storage balances and projected puts and takes within the calendar year can provide 
guidance for recommending movement between these conditions.  Currently, Metropolitan is in a “Condition 2 –
Water Supply Alert” stage as defined in the WSDM Plan.  The following provides a timeline of the events that led 
to this condition: 

On February 11, 2014, the Board adopted a “Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert” calling for local agencies
to achieve extraordinary conservation by adopting and enforcing drought ordinances and other measures
as dry conditions continued following the driest year on record in 2013.

On December 9, 2014, the Board approved adjustments to Metropolitan’s Water Supply Allocation Plan
(WSAP) including updating the base period, updating the Conservation Demand Hardening credit,
including a separate allocation for drought-impacted groundwater basins, and replacing the penalty rates
with an Allocation Surcharge.

On April 14, 2015, the Board declared a regional “Condition 3 – Water Supply Allocation” and
implemented the WSAP at a Regional Shortage Level 3 to address the unprecedented drought conditions
and water needs within the Metropolitan service area.

On May 10, 2016, the Board declared a “Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert” reflecting the improved
hydrologic conditions and water needs within Metropolitan’s service area.

Key Considerations for Declaring a Condition 1 – Water Supply Watch  

Staff is recommending moving to a “Condition 1 – Water Supply Watch” from the current “Condition 2 – Water 
Supply Alert.” A resolution describing the water supply conditions in California and Metropolitan’s service area 
and implementing the actions recommended above is included as Attachment 1.  

Metropolitan’s water supply and dry-year storage reserves steadily declined to record low levels during the 
unprecedented drought that extended from Water Year (WY) 2012/13 through WY 2014/15.  This decline began 
to turn around in WY 2015/16 as precipitation levels in northern California reached normal conditions for the first 
time since the drought began.  Metropolitan’s Board responded to these improvements by not extending the 
“Condition 3 – Water Supply Allocation” but instead moving to a “Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert.”  

These improved conditions continue into the current water year.  In fact, in April 2017, the 8-Station Index 
surpassed the previous record precipitation accumulation of 88.5 inches set in WY 1982/83, making the current 
water year the wettest on record for northern California.  On April 7, 2017, the Governor declared an end to 
the drought state of emergency in California.  Metropolitan also is projecting to add over one million acre-feet 
to its dry-year storage reserves, the largest annual increase in Metropolitan’s history.  The regular WSDM Plan 
update report for this month is included as Attachment 2 to this letter, rather than as a separate report.   

Metropolitan considered the improved water supply conditions and actions taken by the Governor but also 
recognizes the year-to-year uncertainty of shortages and operational constraints facing the SWP.  In addition, staff 
acknowledges that although regional storage resources are recovering, they are not yet at pre-drought levels.  Staff 
recommends moving to a “Condition 1 – Water Supply Watch.”  Should the forecasted unprecedented increase in 
storage gains occur through the end of calendar year 2017, staff may recommend moving to a “Baseline – Water 
Use Efficiency” status in calendar year 2018.

Item 8.A.2



5/9/2017 Board Meeting 8- Page 3 

Policy 

By Minute Item 47393, dated February 12, 2008, the Board adopted the Water Supply Allocation Plan. 

By Minute Item 48376, dated August 17, 2010, the Board adopted proposed adjustments to the Water Supply 
Allocation Plan, and the allocation of seawater barrier supplies for the 2010/11 Allocation Year. 

By Minute Item 48803, dated September 13, 2011, the Board adopted adjustments to the Water Supply 
Allocation Plan. 

By Minute Item 49979, dated December 9, 2014, the Board adopted adjustments to the Water Supply 
Allocation Plan. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

CEQA determination for Option #1:

The proposed action is not defined as a project under CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21065, State CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15378) because the proposed action involves continuing administrative activities such as 
general policy and procedure making.  In addition, where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the proposed action may have a significant effect on the environment, the proposed action is not subject to 
CEQA (Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines). 

The CEQA determination is: Determine that the proposed action is not defined as a project under Public 
Resources Code Section 21065 and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, and is not subject to CEQA pursuant 
to Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines.   

CEQA determination for Option #2: 

None required 

Board Options 

Option #1 
Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action is not defined as a project and is not subject to 
CEQA, and 

Adopt a resolution shown in Attachment 1 to declare a “Condition 1 – Water Supply Watch.” 
Fiscal Impact: None directly related to moving between the systems of conditions developed to communicate 
the urgency of the region’s water supply situation. 
Business Analysis: Moving to a “Condition 1 – Water Supply Watch” is consistent with Metropolitan’s 
storage management framework and encourages continued conservation efforts even as hydrologic conditions 
improve.

Option #2 
Do not adopt the proposed Water Supply Watch Resolution 
Fiscal Impact: None   
Business Analysis: Requiring extraordinary conservation measures, consistent with the current  
“Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert” status, may send the wrong message to water agencies and consumers 
in Metropolitan’s service area. Water supplies are projected to be much higher than demands in calendar 
year 2017.  Maintaining a “Condition 2 – Water Supply Alert” may lead to a loss in credibility.

Item 8.A.2



5/9/2017 Board Meeting 8- Page 4 

Staff Recommendation 

Option #1 

4/24/2017 
Deven N. Upadhyay
Manager, Water Resource Management

Date

4/25/2017 
Jeffrey Kightlinger
General Manager

Date

Attachment 1 – Water Supply Watch Resolution 

Attachment 2 – WSDM Plan Update Report 
Ref# wrm12657754

Item 8.A.2



5/9/2017 Board Meeting 8- Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT 

OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
CALLING FOR A WATER SUPPLY WATCH 

WHEREAS, the state of California is experiencing record wet conditions, snowpack is at about 
160% in Northern California, and water year 2017 is the wettest year on record; and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Water Resources current State Water Project Table A 
Allocation is eighty five percent of contract amounts; and 

WHEREAS, despite the precipitation, the state of California has endured a severe multi-year 
drought that continues to impact storage levels on the Colorado River’s two main reservoirs; and 

WHEREAS, the statewide state of emergency due to drought conditions was rescinded by 
Governor Edmund G. Brown, Jr., effective April 7, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, Metropolitan’s Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan guides Metropolitan’s 
water supply management actions and includes provisions for implementing water conservation; and  

WHEREAS, our changing climate requires California to continue to adopt and adhere to 
measures that help prepare for more frequent and persistent periods of limited water supply; and 

WHEREAS, Metropolitan relies on the actions of its 26 member agencies and their retailer 
agencies to enact and implement local conservation measures. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of The Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, under its Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan, declares that 
Southern California in Metropolitan’s service area is in a Water Supply Watch condition; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Metropolitan encourages all cities, counties, member 
agencies and retail water agencies to implement conservation measures that continue to preserve regional 
storage reserves; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Metropolitan will work with all cities, counties, member 
agencies and retail water agencies in the region to identify mechanisms that would encourage and 
facilitate the adoption of rate structures and other mechanisms to promote water conservation; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Metropolitan will coordinate with the member agencies to 
develop a unified regional message in the media and outreach campaigns in order to communicate the 
need for continued conservation to the general public, businesses, stakeholder industries and public 
officials; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Metropolitan intends to work with and assist its member 
agencies, and the region’s cities, counties and retail water agencies to help ensure a reliable near-term and 
long-term water supply, to adopt and implement appropriate conservation ordinances and measures, and 
to inform retail water users of the Water Supply Watch conditions and the need for sustained water use 
efficiency practices. 

Item 8.A.2



5/9/2017 Board Meeting 8- Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution adopted 
by the Board of Directors of The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California at its meeting held 
May 9, 2017. 

______________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 
of the Metropolitan Water District 

of Southern California

Item 8.A.2



Date of Report: 5/9/2017 

Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan

Summary 

This Water Surplus and Drought Management (WSDM) report provides a preliminary accounting of water 
supply, demand, and storage conditions for calendar year (CY) 2017.  This report considers conditions as of 
May 1, 2017. 

The Water Year (WY) to date hydrologic conditions in the Upper Colorado River and northern California 
watersheds continue to be above average.  Snowpack peaks to date in both watersheds are above their respective 
April 1 averages as we enter into the spring snowmelt season.  As a result, the water year runoff that is comprised 
of the observed flows to date and the anticipated snowmelt are projected to be above average in each watershed.  
Despite above average conditions, the inflows into Lake Powell are not expected to trigger equalization releases.  
The median condition runoff forecast for northern California, however, is projected to be the second highest in the 
historic record.  As a result, DWR has increased the SWP allocation to 85 percent for 2017.  Further, DWR has 
made available Article 21 supplies and Metropolitan began taking delivery of these supplies in March.  These 
supplies are in addition to the SWP allocation.   

Staff is projecting that supplies will exceed demands in CY 2017 and anticipates setting a new record for the 
largest increase dry-year storage reserves for a calendar year.   

Purpose

Informational  

Attachments

Exhibit A: Projected 2017 WSDM Storage Detail (85% SWP allocation) 

Detailed Report 

This WSDM report updates the developing water supply and demand conditions for CY 2017.  This report 
provides the Board with an update on hydrologic conditions and a detailed accounting of WSDM conditions that 
may impact water supply reliability for CY 2017.  

2017 Estimated Colorado River Aqueduct Supplies 

The Upper Colorado River Basin snowpack peaked on March 10, 2017 measuring 130 percent of the April 1 
average.  The observed inflows to Lake Powell to date along with the anticipated spring snowmelt is suggesting a 
water year runoff forecast of 124 percent of normal.  This would be the first above normal runoff since 
WY 2010/11.  Despite wet conditions, the Bureau of Reclamation’s April 24-Month Study does not project the 
necessary inflows to Lake Powell to trigger equalization releases.  Nevertheless, the storage gains that are 
achieved in Lake Powell this year will improve the probability of equalization next year that will help balance 
storage levels between Lake Powell and Lake Mead.

The table below shows staff’s estimate of Colorado River supplies for CY 2017 prior to water management 
actions.  The total of 960 TAF is referred to as the Colorado River Aqueduct (CRA) base supply and is comprised 
of Metropolitan’s Basic Apportionment (550 TAF) and the established Colorado River supply programs 
developed to date.  The established supply programs have a range of uncertainty, therefore the yield shown 
reflects staff’s current estimate.  A larger degree of uncertainty involves the water use of the higher priority 
agricultural users.  The agricultural use, which could be positive or negative, will be better known as the year 
progresses at which time appropriate adjustments will be made to the Colorado River supply projection.  
Therefore, at this time, the projected water supply includes Metropolitan’s Basic Apportionment (550 TAF) and 
estimate for  the established Colorado River supply programs developed to date without an agricultural use 
adjustment.      

Report

Water Resources Management 

Item 8.A.2



Board Report (Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan)  

Date of Report: May 9, 2017 2

2017 Colorado River Aqueduct Base Supply Estimate (Acre Feet)
Basic Apportionment 550,000
IID/MWD Conservation Program 85,000
PVID/Bard Fallowing Programs 125,000
Exchange with SDCWA (IID Transfer and Canal Lining) 178,000
Canal Lining Water to MWD 16,000
Lower Colorado Water Supply Project 6,000

CRA Supply Before Water Management And Storage Actions 960,000

2017 Estimated State Water Project Supplies 

The most recent snowpack peak in northern California was observed on April 18, 2017, and measured 157 percent 
of normal.  This is the largest snowpack peak since 2011.  The observed river flows to date and anticipated spring 
snowmelt is suggesting a median water year runoff forecast of 208 percent of normal.  This would be the second 
highest runoff in the historic record.  On April 14, 2017 DWR announced an increase to the SWP allocation to 
85 percent.  This increase was based on the April 1 snow surveys, continued wet conditions, SWP reservoir 
storage levels and a determination on the operating criteria for Lake Oroville for the remainder of the calendar 
year.   

In addition, DWR continues to make available supplies consistent with Article 21 of the long-term contract for the 
SWP.  The criteria necessary to make these supplies available include meeting all State Water Contractor 
(Contractor) demands, filling the State’s share of San Luis Reservoir, and having excess capacity at Banks 
Pumping Plant.  These criteria are only met intermittently, which means Article 21 supplies are highly variable in 
nature.  Metropolitan has taken delivery of approximately 100 TAF of “Article 21" supplies to date and will 
continue to seek opportunities to take deliveries of future available supplies.

The table below shows staff’s estimate of SWP contractual supplies for CY 2017.  

2017 State Water Project Supply Estimate (Acre Feet)
Table A Supply (85% SWP allocation) 1,625,000
Article 21 (received as of May 1) 100,000
Port Hueneme Agreement 2,000

SWP Contractual Suppy 1,727,000

2017 Demands and Losses Estimate 

The table below summarizes the estimated demands, obligations and losses for CY 2017 under the current trend 
demand projection.  Demands on Metropolitan include Member Agency consumptive use which includes water 
exchanged with San Diego County Water Authority and sea water barrier requirements.  Member Agency 
replenishment demands include water for groundwater basins and surface reservoir recharge and reflect demand 
levels under relatively wet conditions.  Metropolitan staff continues to work with Member Agencies to refine 
these demands to reflect low groundwater levels and capacity to replenish as water supplies become available.  
CY 2017 demands also include obligations to deliver water to the Coachella Valley Water District under a 
long-term delivery and exchange agreement.  Losses for CY 2017 are an estimate of Metropolitan distribution 
system losses, and evaporative and contractual losses from storage.  Storage losses will fluctuate based on the 
SWP allocation and final accounting of the actual puts to storage.   

Item 8.A.2



Board Report (Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan)  

Date of Report: May 9, 2017 3

Transfer/Exchanges  

Metropolitan staff is pursuing exchange agreements or other programs that will benefit the region.  Metropolitan 
has entered into unbalanced exchange agreements with Castaic Lake Water Agency and Central Coast Water 
Authority to help manage roughly 46,000 acre-feet of their SWP supplies that were at risk of spilling as DWR 
filled San Luis Reservoir.  Through this unbalanced exchange, Metropolitan will yield roughly 15,000 acre-feet.  
In addition, Metropolitan, Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) and the Central Arizona Project are 
funding conservation programs in Mexico and share the conserved water per the terms of International Boundary 
and Water Commission Minute No. 319.  Metropolitan contributed $2.5 million for conservation projects and will 
receive roughly 24,000 acre-feet of binational Intentionally Created Surplus (ICS) water for its share of the 
funding in 2017.  Combined, these programs would yield approximately 39,000 acre-feet. 

2017 Water Supply Balance  

The following table shows the estimated net balance between demands and water supplies at an 85 percent SWP 
allocation for CY 2017.   

2017 Water Supply and Demand Balance Estimate (Acre Feet)
85% SWP Allocation w/

Current Demands

CRA Supplies 960,000
SWP Supplies 1,727,000
Transfer/Exchanges 39,000

Total Supplies 2,726,000

Total Demands and Losses 1,505,000
Net Water Supply and Demand Balance 1,221,000

Metropolitan is projecting that supplies will exceed demand levels in CY 2017.  As shown above, there is an 
estimated surplus of 1.2 MAF under an 85 percent SWP allocation.  Metropolitan anticipates adding to its storage 
reserves in CY 2017 thus continuing the storage recovery that began in CY 2016. 

Based on this estimated recovery and a beginning dry-year storage balance of 1.3 MAF, Metropolitan’s dry-year 
storage balance at the end of CY 2017 could be up to 2.5 MAF.  This includes a 214 TAF increase to 
Metropolitan’s ICS account in Lake Mead including the binational ICS component.  Exhibit A shows the starting 
balance, estimated put and take capacities for CY 2017 and total storage capacity for each of Metropolitan’s 
storage programs at a 85 percent SWP allocation.  Metropolitan will exercise flexibility and opportunities within 
the current storage programs to increase put capacities depending on supply/demand balances.  Under these 
projected conditions, the level of surplus supplies may or may not exceed the put capacity of regional storage 
programs, depending on the many variables listed in this report.

2017 Estimated Demands, Losses and Obligations (Acre Feet)
Member Agency Consumptive Demands 1,250,000
Member Agency Replenishment Demands 144,000
Coachella Valley Water District Agreement 35,000
System and Storage Losses 76,000

Total Estimated Demands and Losses 1,505,000

Item 8.A.2



Board Report (Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan)  

Date of Report: May 9, 2017 4

Future Payback Agreements 
Metropolitan has two types of payback agreements; Dry-year Exchanges and Operational Exchanges.  The 
following table shows a list of the future dry-year exchange payback amounts from programs in which 
Metropolitan participates.  Dry-year exchanges are those with payback provisions that are beyond one year from 
the exchange date. 

The exchange agreement with the SNWA was executed in 2004 and later amended to address changing 
conditions.  The agreement allows Metropolitan to store unused Nevada apportionment of Colorado River water 
in California.  SNWA may request recovery of this stored water in the future.  Return may commence as early as 
2022, however, SNWA has other supplies available that would likely delay the need for returns until after this 
date.  Metropolitan did not store any SNWA water in 2016 and does not plan to store any SNWA water in 2017.  

The California Extraordinary Conservation ICS agreement with the Imperial Irrigation District (IID) and other 
agencies executed in 2007, and later amended in 2015 to expand volumes, allows Metropolitan to store conserved 
IID water in excess of its Quantification Settlement Agreement (QSA) conservation commitments.  The water 
may be returned at IID’s request.  Metropolitan does not plan to store any IID water in 2017.    

In 2014, Metropolitan exercised Article 54 of its long-term water supply contract with the State of California and 
took delivery of 219 TAF from the SWP system.  Repayment is required by 2020.  Metropolitan paid 30 TAF of 
this obligation back in 2015, an additional 124 TAF repayment in 2016 through storage management actions, and 
the remaining balance of 65 TAF was repaid in January and February 2017.   

Repayments are subject to final DWR accounting.  The table below shows all outstanding Dry-year Exchange 
payback amounts. 

Dry-year Exchange/Program  Payback Amount 
(Acre-Feet) 

Payback Term 

Storage and Interstate Release 
Agreement with Southern Nevada 
Water Authority 

330,000 Up to 30,000 AFY (no earlier 
than 2022)

California ICS Agreement - IID 98,0001 Any year, conditional on 
whether or not Metropolitan is 

implementing a WSAP

Total 428,000  
                        1 Estimated and subject to final U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Colorado River Accounting.

The following table shows the future Operational Exchange payback amounts from the programs in which 
Metropolitan participates.  Operational exchanges are those with payback provisions that may be within one year 
of the exchange date and provide Metropolitan increased flexibility in the timing and conveyance of deliveries.   
In 2014, Metropolitan took possession of 5 TAF of water from Irvine Ranch.  Metropolitan returned 1 TAF  
in 2015 and the remaining 4 TAF is to be returned no later than 2024 at Irvine Ranch’s request.  Metropolitan has 
also taken possession of 2 TAF of water from Dudley Ridge Water District in coordination with Irvine Ranch.
Half of this supply must be returned to Dudley Ridge and the other half to Irvine Ranch no later than 2022. 

Operational Exchange/Program Payback Amount 
(Acre-Feet) 

Payback Term 

 Strand Ranch - Irvine Ranch 4,000 No later than 2024

Dudley Ridge WD – Irvine Ranch 2,000 No later than 2022

Total 6,000

Item 8.A.2



Board Report (Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan)  

Date of Report: May 9, 2017 5

Projected 2017 WSDM Storage Detail (85% SWP Allocation)
Exhibit A

WSDM Storage
1/1/2017

Storage Levels
CY 2017 Take
Capacity1

CY 2017
Additional Put

Capacity1

Total
Capacity1

Colorado River Aqueduct System 85,000 54,000 214,000 1,604,000
Lake Mead Extraordinary Conservation ICS 5,000 5,000 190,000 1,500,000
System Efficiency and Binational ICS 80,000 49,000 24,000 104,000
State Water Project System 723,000 578,000 264,000 1,845,000
MWD SWP Carryover 168,000 168,000 32,0002 200,000
DWCV SWP Carryover 42,000 42,000 65,0002 107,000
Castaic Lake (DWR Flex Storage) 154,000 154,000 0 154,000
Lake Perris (DWR Flex Storage) 0 0 65,000 65,000
Arvin Edison Storage Program 108,000 29,000 22,000 389,000
Semitropic Storage Program 125,000 125,000 53,000 350,000
Kern Delta Storage Program 99,000 60,000 27,000 250,000
Mojave Storage Program 27,000 0 0 330,000
In Region Storage 739,000 441,000 388,000 1,389,000
Diamond Valley Lake 566,000 376,000 244,000 810,000
Lake Mathews 135,000 57,000 47,000 182,000
Lake Skinner 37,000 7,000 7,000 44,000
IEUA/TVMWD (Chino Basin) 0 0 10,000 100,000
Long Beach (Cent. Basin) 0 0 0 13,000
Long Beach (Lakewood) 0 0 0 4,000
Foothill (Raymond and Monkhill) 0 0 0 9,000
MWDOC (Orange County Basin) 0 0 16,000 66,000
Three Valleys (Live Oak) 1,000 1,000 0 6,000
Three Valleys (Upper Claremont) 0 0 1,000 3,000
Western 0 0 3,000 12,000
Cyclic Upper San Gabriel 0 0 60,000 100,000
Cyclic Three Valleys 0 0 0 40,000
Other Programs 366,000 38,000 400,000 1,128,000
Other Emergency Storage 328,000 0 0 328,000
To Be Determined Storage Action3 0 0 261,000 0
DWCV Advance Delivery Account 38,000 38,000 139,000 800,000
Total 1,913,000 1,111,000 1,266,000 5,966,000
Emergency 626,000 0 0 626,000
Total WSDM Storage4 1,287,000 1,111,000 1,266,000 5,340,000
1 Take, Put, and Total capacities assumed under an 85% SWP Table A Allocation.
2Metropolitan could put amounts in addition to this subject to increase risk of spill.
3 Metropolitan will exercise flexibility and opportunities within current storage programs to increase put capacities if needed.
4 Total WSDM Storage level is subject to change based on accounting adjustments.

Item 8.A.2



Item 8.A.2



Item 8.A.2



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $ 

Discussion:  

In prior years, the Board has occasionally cancelled all meetings during the summer 

months of July and August, and at other times has chosen a modified schedule. 

With the budget/rate adoption process now completed and limited regular business 

anticipated, the Board will now determine what action to take relative to its summer 

schedule. The following Board meetings are presently on the calendar: 

o July 5, 2017 

o July 19, 2017 

o August 2, 2017 

o August 16, 2017 

The Board will be provided with an information packet of ongoing activities at Three 

Valleys for any month that a Board meeting is not held. At any time during the proposed 

summer schedule a special meeting can be called to attend to necessary business. 

Staff is seeking direction from the Board to return this item for future action. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions. 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: Modified Board Meeting Schedule 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.A.3



 

 

 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Discussion:  

In the early 1980s, TVMWD sold property (aka University Corporate Center) adjacent to 
the I-10/SR-57 interchange (see map on Figure 1). As a condition of that sale, the new 
owner reserved easements for access and three separate parcels for the purpose of 
constructing, operating, and maintaining recharge (injections/extraction) wells.  The 
locations overlie the Spadra Groundwater Basin and are adjacent to two existing water 
pipelines:  the MWD Orange County Feeder and the PWR Joint Water Line.  
 
The property has been subsequently subdivided and sold to various entities, but the 
easements remain in place in their original configuration. DeVry Education Group, the 
current owner of two lots located at 901 Corporate Center Drive (see Figure 2), is in 
negotiations with a potential buyer for its property. Two of the three above-mentioned 
easement parcels, are located within the DeVry property. The prospective buyer inquired 
of TVMWD’s intentions to use the easements and requested that, if possible, the easement 
parcels be eliminated, relocated, and/or reduced in size to accommodate the buyer’s future 
development plans.  
 
While there currently exist no planned projects to install recharge wells on the parcels, 
TVMWD does want to retain the ability to develop such plans if future conditions and needs 
lend themselves to the concept. Three Valleys does recognize that certain 
accommodations could be made to assist with the property negotiatons without necessarily 
eliminating the existence of easements for future recharge well purposes.  The original 
100’x100’ size of each of the easement parcels was considered to account for the space 
needed during construction activities. A finished recharge well, however, could be housed 
within a smaller plot of 50’x50’. Accordingly, TVMWD staff has expressed a willingness to 
reduce the final size of each of the easement parcels from 100’x100’ to 50’x50’.  This would, 
of course, be granted in combination with a provision allowing TVMWD to access a larger 
area during the constrution period.  Additionally, relocating each of the parcels to mutually 
agreeable locations within the property was also acceptable. Figure 3 shows the 
approximate locations of the existing and proposed easements. 
 
To formalize the above actions, TVMWD must quitclaim the two existing easement parcels, 
and the property owner (DeVry) must, in turn, grant new easements corresponding to the 
agreed-upon sizes and locations.  DeVry has provided TVMWD with draft documents that 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: Relocation of Recharge Well Easements  

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.B.1



 

  Page 2 

would grant such actions. Staff and District Counsel are reviewing these documents, and 
it is anticipated that a final version will be presented to the Board and recommended for 
approval at its June 21, 2017 meeting.  
 

Strategic Plan Objectives: 

1.5 – Maintain water infrastructure to assure 100% reliability. 
2.3 – Manage water infrastructure and staff operations to minimize costs. 
3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

Item 8.B.1



1021 E. Miramar Avenue
Claremont, California 91711

www.threevalleys.com

RECHARGE WELL EASEMENTS

Location Map
Figure 1

10

10

71

Cal Poly
Pomona

S. C
ampus D

riv
e

Valle
y Blvd

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY

Item 8.B.1



1021 E. Miramar Avenue
Claremont, California 91711

www.threevalleys.com

RECHARGE WELL EASEMENTS

DeVry Property
Figure 2

S. C
ampus D

riv
e

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY

Co
rp

or
ate Center Drive

Item 8.B.1



1021 E. Miramar Avenue
Claremont, California 91711

www.threevalleys.com

RECHARGE WELL EASEMENTS

Existing Easements
& Proposed Easements

Figure 3

Existing 
Easements

Proposed 
Easements

Co
rp

orate Center Drive

Item 8.B.1



 

 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

 
Discussion:  

Brief status reports for projects are provided below: 
 
Williams/Fulton Hydroelectric Stations Analyses – Project Nos. 58149 / 58150   
TVMWD remains waiting for SCE review and determination of protection settings at the 
interconnections for both the Williams and Fulton Hydros. Until such determination is 
made, fabrication and installation of electrical equipment upgrades is stalled. TVMWD 
staff has remained in contact with SCE representatives to expedite the process, but the 
review process within SCE continues to be a cumbersome task. 
 
Grand Avenue Well – Project No. 58446 
Staff has completed review of the preliminary design report (PDR) that was prepared by 
the District’s engineering consultant. The PDR is currently being revised to incorporate 
staff comments and should be finalized within the next week. The consultant has also 
begun preparation of environmental documentation for the CEQA (CA Environmental 
Quality Act) process. Staff anticipates it will take approximately four months to complete 
this task. Meanwhile, TVMWD has invited nearby residents to an informational meeting 
on June 1, 2017 to present the purpose and scope of the project and to address 
questions and concerns that they may have.  Information and input from the residents will 
be taken into account as the project moves through the environmental and design 
processes.  
 
TVMWD Baseline Road Well Project – Project No. 58458 
No additional update available.    
 
Leroy’s Meter Connection Project – Project No. 58154 
Staff has secured city and county encroachment permits and has provided all information 
and documents required by Edison to complete its design. Once Edison is ready, the 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: Projects Summary Update 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.B.2



schedule to relocate its facilities will be coordinated with the contractor’s construction 
schedule for the connection. The contractor is currently procuring all materials to be 
installed and is anticipating that work will still take place in the July-August timeframe.  
TVMWD staff will continue to coordinate with all affected agencies before and during 
construction and will also reach out to neighboring residents to minimize any impacts of 
the construction.  
 
Reservoir Effluent Pump Station Project 
Engineering and Operations staff met with the consultant in late May to provide additional 
feedback and criteria that will be used to prepare the preliminary design report (PDR), 
which should be completed within a few weeks. After completion of the PDR, staff will 
review it and provide comments.  The consultant will then move forward with the detailed 
design.  Staff anticipates the final design will be completed in late July. 
 
 
 

Strategic Plan Objectives: 
1.4 – Capable of delivering 10,000 AFY from local sources in case of drought or catastrophe. 
1.5 – Maintain water infrastructure to assure 100% reliability. 
2.3 – Manage water infrastructure and staff operations to minimize costs. 
3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

Item 8.B.2



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Background: 

Annually TVMWD has a financial statement audit performed by an external auditor (LSL) 
which provides an opinion as to whether the financial statements are fairly stated.  LSL is 
required to gain an understanding of TVMWD’s internal controls, but is not required to test 
or provide an opinion on these controls. 

Discussion: 

Statement on Auditing Standards No. 130 (SAS 130) was recently issued that establishes 
requirements and guidance for when an auditor is engaged to perform an audit of internal 
controls that is integrated with an audit of financial statements.  A SAS 130 audit is not 
required, however if we are looking to provide more assurance that we are being proper 
stewards of TVMWD assets, this is certainly an opportunity to demonstrate it. 

LSL suggests spending considerable time preparing for this type of audit.  Although we 
have internal controls in place, we will be required to show we are regularly testing these 
controls and provide an opinion to LSL as to strengths, weaknesses and levels of risk.  In 
addition, we must document areas where we do not have ideal internal controls and explain 
why we choose not to strengthen that area (e.g. because it is not cost effective). 

Follow-up: 

Finance staff will be attending a governmental accounting and auditing update later this 
month that specifically discusses how to prepare for a SAS 130 audit.  Staff will bring back 
a SAS 130 audit contract later this calendar year for consideration that would be conducted 
in conjunction with the FY 17/18 financial audit.  LSL has stated the cost of a SAS 130 
would increase the cost of our audit approximately 30%. 
 
Strategic Plan Objectives: 

3.1 – Utilize and comply with a set of financial policies to maintain TVMWD’s financial 
health 
3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: Audit of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.C.1



 

 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Background:  

CalPERS regulations require the Board to review and approve TVMWD’s salary schedule 

any time changes are made.  These regulations set forth the requirements that “payrate” 

and “special compensation” documents be public records available for public scrutiny. 

 
Discussion:  

Provided for review is a draft of the salary schedule to be effective July 1, 2017.  These 

salary ranges were determined after conducting a compensation study as prescribed by 

the compensation philosophy section of TVMWD’s strategic plan.  All salary ranges were 

considered independently, but collectively the ranges were increased 4% along with a 

1.48% increase based on the change from 2015 to 2016 in the Consumer Price Index - 

Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, as prepared by the Bureau of Labor Statistics.  

These ranges were contemplated in the budget adopted for FY 17/18. 

As a reminder, these adjustments are being made to the salary ranges, not to the individual 

employee’s salary.  Salary changes continue to be based on the merits of the employee’s 

annual evaluation. 

This item will be brought back for consideration of adoption on June 21, 2017. 

 
Strategic Plan Objectives: 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: June 7, 2017 

Subject: 
Review of Salary Schedule Effective July 1, 2017 Pursuant to CalPERS 
Regulations 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8.C.2



Min. Salary Mid. Salary Max. Salary

Range Range Range

ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN 46,843$        60,896$         74,949$        

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 43,296$        56,285$         69,274$        

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER - ADMIN 131,628$      171,116$       210,605$      

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 131,628$      171,116$       210,605$      

CONSERVATION & RESOURCE ANALYST 72,516$        94,271$         116,026$      

ENGINEER 73,113$        95,047$         116,981$      

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 53,941$        70,123$         86,306$        

MANAGER OF ENGINEERING OPERATIONS 131,628$      171,116$       210,605$      

OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR 77,398$        100,617$       123,837$      

OPERATIONS WATER QUALITY ASSISTANT 61,429$        79,858$         98,286$        

PLANT ASSISTANT (T1) 37,646$        48,940$         60,234$        

PROJECT MANAGER 95,991$        124,788$       153,586$      

SENIOR FINANCIAL ANALYST 72,335$        94,036$         115,736$      

SHIFT OPERATOR (T2) 46,333$        60,233$         74,133$        

SHIFT OPERATOR (T3) 57,025$        74,133$         91,240$        

SHIFT OPERATOR (T4) 62,924$        81,801$         100,678$      

SHIFT OPERATOR (T5) 65,441$        85,073$         104,706$      

WATER OPERATIONS MANAGER 101,625$      132,113$       162,600$      

Shift Differential Pay

- Shift operators and plant assistants who work at times other than dayshift (7 AM to 3 PM) will be compensated

  with 10% additional pay for those hours.

- Swing (3 PM to 11PM)

- Grave (11 PM to 7 AM)

- Weekend (3 PM to 7 AM each day)

- Shift differential pay is considered special compensation and will be reported to CalPERS as such.

Standby Pay

- Shift operators who serve in an on-call capacity will be paid $35 per day ($70 on holidays).

- One operator will be designated to serve in this role every day (weekdays and weekends). 

- The on-call operator must be available on his designated day to return to the plant within 30 minutes of receiving a

  call, ready for work as in any other instance.  If the on-call operator is unable to return to work, a substitute operator

  will be designated and will receive the standby pay.

- In addition to receiving the $35 per day, the on-call operator will be paid for the additional time spent responding to

  the situation.

- If responding by phone only, the on-call operator will be guaranteed at least 15 minutes of additional pay.  All 

     time over 15 minutes will be rounded up to the nearest 15 minute increment.

- If responding in person, the on-call operator will be guaranteed 2 hours of additional pay (unless time overlaps

  into regularly scheduled workday).  Time over 2 hours will be rounded up to the nearest 15 minute increment.

- Operators will be eligible for OT and shift differential pay as applicable for time spent responding.

- Standby pay is not considered special compensation and thus will not be included as a part of final compensation

in calculating CalPERS pension.

Holiday Pay

- Any employee scheduled who works on either the actual holiday or the observed holiday will be paid at one and 

  one-half times the employee’s regular rate of pay. Since the employee is working the holiday, the employee will 

  also be paid an additional eight hours at regular pay for that holiday.

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

ANNUAL SALARY RANGE BY CLASSIFICATION

Effective:  July 1, 2017

CLASSIFICATION

Based on Board approval, an adjustment to each salary range classification will be considered for July 1 of each 

year.  Range adjustments are tied to changes in the Consumer Price Index - Urban Wage Earners and Clerical 

Workers for Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County (CWURA421SA0) as prepared by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, 

from current year annual to the prior year annual.  The adjustment to each salary range is intended to keep 

TVMWD's salary ranges at the market level and may not necessarily impact individual salaries.  The opportunity for 

individual salary increases will continue under the merit-based system employed by TVMWD.  An important note is 

that an employee’s annual salary may be below the minimum salary range if: (1) their annual evaluation has not yet 

occurred in the current fiscal year or (2) their performance documented in prior annual evaluations has not merited 

an increase that has kept up with index adjustments to the salary ranges.

Item 8.C.2

jlinthicum
Draft


	Agenda - Regular Board Meeting, June 7, 2017 (pgs. 1-3)
	Item 7 - Legal Update - Annual Sunshine Ordinance Review (pgs. 4-17)
	Ordinance No. 13-04-20 - Sunshine Ordinance, Concerning the Conduct of TVMWD's Public Meetings

	Item 8.A.1 - Draft Resolution Setting Procedures and Changes for Public Review and Copy of District Records (pgs. 18-25) 
	Draft Resolution
	Exhibit A - Public Records Inspection and Copy Request Form, DRAFT
	Exhibit B - Records Request Schedule of Fees, DRAFT
	Exhibit C - Form of Declaration

	Item 8.A.2 - Draft Resolution Declaring a Water Supply Watch (pgs. 26-42)
	Draft Resolution
	MWD Board Report, Water Planning & Stewardship Committee, May 9, 2017
	TVMWD Resolution No. 14-04-729 in Support of a Water Supply Alert

	Item 8.A.3 - Modified Board Meeting Schedule (pg. 43)
	Item 8.B.1 - Relocation of Recharge Well Easements (pgs. 44-48)
	Figure 1
	Figure 2
	Figure 3

	Item 8.B.2 - Project Summary Update (pgs. 49-50) 
	Item 8.C.1 - Audit of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (pg. 51)
	Item 8.C.2 - Review of Salary Schedule Effective July 1, 2017 Pursuant to CalPERS Regulations (pgs. 52-53) 
	Annual Salary Range by Classification, eff. July 1, 2017 - DRAFT


	Name of Requestor please print: 
	Affiliation optional: 
	Address optional: 
	Phone Number optional: 
	Fax Number optional: 
	Email Address optional: 
	TitleDocument: 
	Description 1: 
	Description 2: 
	Description 3: 
	DateYear of documents: 
	Inspect only: Off
	Request copies: Off
	Mail copies: Off
	Email copies: Off
	Pick up copies: Off
	Check box to validate typedprinted name below as esignature: Off
	Date: 
	DATE RECEIVED: 
	DATE NOTIFIED: 
	RECORDS PRODUCED BY: 


